


From: CMTEDD FOI
To: JACS FOI; CMTEDD FOI
Subject: RE: FOI Request
Date: Monday, 8 May 2023 3:18:31 PM

OFFICIAL

Good afternoon Angelique,

CMTEDD FOI accepts full transfer of this request

Kind Regards

Freedom of Information Coordinator | Information Access Team
Ph: 6207 7754 | Email: CMTEDDFOI@act.gov.au
Corporate | Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate | ACT 
Government
Level 5, 220 London Circuit, Canberra ACT 2601 | GPO Box 158 Canberra ACT 2601 | act.gov.au

From: JACS FOI <JACSFOI@act.gov.au> 
Sent: Friday, 5 May 2023 2:42 PM
To: CMTEDD FOI <CMTEDDFOI@act.gov.au>
Subject: FW: FOI Request

OFFICIAL

Good afternoon team

I refer to the below application and seek to confirm if you accept full transfer, noting a full
transfer was accepted last year on the same subject.

Thank you. Please feel free to contact me should you wish to discuss.

Kind regards

Angelique Delahaye I Assistant Director – Freedom of Information
Governance, Coordination and Reporting I Justice and Community Safety Directorate
( 6205 9975 I 8 angelique.delahaye@act.gov.au | + GPO Box 158, Canberra ACT 2601

From: > 
Sent: Thursday, 4 May 2023 5:35 PM
To: JACS FOI <JACSFOI@act.gov.au>
Subject: FOI Request

Good afternoon,

On behalf of  I write to request, under the Freedom of Information Act 2016, copies



of the following documents:
 

1. Any correspondence (from the Minister, or his office) between the ACT Attorney-General
and the ACT Commissioner for Fair Trading in regards to Annual Reports Hearings and any
conflicts of interest that were declared (2020-21-Present).

 
2. Any briefings, documentation and correspondence relating to the conflict of interest

declared by the ACT Commissioner for Fair Trading on November 26, 2021.
 

Kind regards,





eight documents as I consider them to contain information that would, on balance, be 
contrary to the public interest to disclose under the test set out in section 17 of the Act. 
My access decisions are detailed further in the following statement of reasons and the 
documents released to you are provided as Attachment B to this letter. 

In accordance with section 54(2) of the Act a statement of reasons outlining my decisions 
is below.  

Statement of Reasons  

In reaching my access decisions, I have taken the following into account: 

• the Act 
• the content of the documents that fall within the scope of your request 
• the views of consulted third parties 
• the ACT Ombudsman Guidelines 
• the Human Rights Act 2004. 

Exemption claimed  

As a decision maker, I am required to determine whether the information within scope is 
in the public interest to release. To make this decision, I am required to: 

• assess whether the information would be contrary to public interest to disclose as 
per Schedule 1 of the Act 

• perform the public interest test as set out in section 17 of the Act by balancing the 
factors favouring disclosure and factors favouring non-disclosure in Schedule 2 

I have included below the factors relevant to my decision on access. 

Contrary to the public interest information under schedule 1 of the Act 

I have determined that some of the material within the scope of your request contains 
information that is taken to be contrary to the public interest to disclose under  
Schedule 1 of the Act.  

1.2  Information subject to legal professional privilege 

 Information that would be privileged from production or admission into evidence in a 
legal proceeding on the ground of legal professional privilege. 

Documents 45, 46, 75, 76, 77, and 86 contain information that would be privileged from 
production or admission into evidence in a legal proceeding on the ground of legal 
professional privilege. The information relates to legal advice received and sought by the 
ACT Government in relation to this matter and it is not considered to be in the public 
interest to release. This information can only be released if the parties involved agree to 
waive that privilege. The parties have not waived privilege. 

1.1B  Information in possession of integrity commission or inspector of the integrity 
commission 

 Information in the possession of the integrity commission, or the integrity commission 
inspector, unless the information is administrative in nature. 

Section 1.1B provides that disclosure of information is taken to be contrary to the public 
interest if the information is in the possession of the Commission or the Inspector unless 
it is of an administrative nature (e.g., management and administration of the Integrity 



Commission). I note that some of the material within document 92, contains direct 
correspondence with the ACT Integrity Commission. This information where it is not 
purely administrative has been redacted.  

Information that would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest to disclose under 
the test set out in section 17 of the Act 

Public Interest 

The Act has a presumption in favour of disclosure. As a decision maker I am required to 
decide where, on balance, public interest lies. As part of this process, I must consider 
factors favouring disclosure and nondisclosure. 

In Hogan v Hinch (2011) 243 CLR 506, [31] French CJ stated that when ‘used in a statute, 
the term [public interest] derives its content from “the subject matter and the scope and 
purpose” of the enactment in which it appears’. Section 17(1) of the Act sets out the test, 
to be applied to determine whether disclosure of information would be contrary to the 
public interest. These factors are found in subsection 17(2) and Schedule 2 of the Act.  

Factors favouring disclosure in the public interest (Schedule 2 section 2.1): 

Taking into consideration the information contained in the documents found to be within 
the scope of your request, I have identified that the following public interest factors are 
relevant to determine if release of the information contained within these documents is 
within the ‘public interest’. 

(a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to do any of the following: 

(i) promote open discussion of public affairs and enhance the government’s 
accountability. 

(ii) contribute to positive and informed debate on important issues or matters of 
public interest. 

(viii) reveal the reason for a government decision and any background or contextual 
information that informed the decision. 

Having considered the factors identified as relevant in this matter, I consider that release 
of the information within the scope of the request may promote open discussion of 
public affairs and enhance the government’s accountability. The release of the 
documents identified will provide contextual information relating to the conflict of 
interest declared by the ACT Commissioner for Fair Trading on November 26, 2021. 

I am satisfied there is public interest in the release of this information and have placed 
considerable weight on the above factors. However, this factor is to be balanced against 
the factors favouring nondisclosure. 

Factors favouring nondisclosure in the public interest (Schedule 2 section 2.2): 

(a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to do any of the following: 

(i) prejudice the protection of an individual’s right to privacy or any other right 
under the Human Rights Act 2004. 

I consider that the protection of an individual’s right to privacy, is a significant factor in 
the release of this information. Some contact details of individuals named in the 
documentation have been removed, as I consider that the release of this information 
could impact their right to privacy. However, I note that there is a considerable amount of 



information already within the public domain, as such I have balanced this factor strongly 
in favour of disclosure. 

I note that the release of information concerning individuals working within the ACT 
Public Service is generally not considered to prejudice the protection of an individual’s 
right to privacy. However, where mobile phone numbers may be used for home and work 
purposes, this information is redacted, as it could or would reasonably be expected to 
prejudice an individual’s right to privacy under the Human Rights Act 2004. 

In line with ACT Ombudsman Guidelines, where out of scope information is the only 
reason for redaction, it is taken to be a full release.  

Having applied the test outlined in section 17 of the Act and deciding that release of 
personal information contained in the documents is not in the public interest to release, I 
have chosen to redact this specific information in accordance with section 50(2).  

Noting the pro-disclosure intent of the Act, I am satisfied that redacting only the 
information that I believe is not in the public interest to release will ensure that the intent 
of the Act has been met. 

Charges 

I have waived fees associated with your access application because under section  
 is not to be charged a fee for an access 

application.   

Online publishing – Disclosure Log 

Under section 28 of the Act, CMTEDD maintains an online record of access applications 
called a disclosure log. Your original access application, my decision and documents 
released to you in response to your access application will be published in the CMTEDD 
disclosure log. Your personal contact details will not be published. You may view CMTEDD 
disclosure log at  https://www.cmtedd.act.gov.au/functions/foi/disclosure-log-2023i. 

Ombudsman Review 

My decision on your access request is a reviewable decision as identified in Schedule 3 of 
the Act. You have the right to seek Ombudsman review of this outcome under section 73 
of the Act within 20 working days from the day that my decision is provided to you, or a 
longer period allowed by the Ombudsman.   
 

We recommend using this form Applying for an Ombudsman Review to ensure you 
provide all of the required information.  Alternatively, you may write to the Ombudsman 
at:  

The ACT Ombudsman 
GPO Box 442 
CANBERRA ACT 2601 

Via email: actfoi@ombudsman.gov.au  

ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal (ACAT) Review 

Under section 84 of the Act, if a decision is made under section 82(1) on an Ombudsman 
review, you may apply to the ACAT for review of the Ombudsman decision. Further 
information may be obtained from the ACAT at:  



ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal 
15 Constitution Avenue 
GPO Box 370 
Canberra City ACT 2601  
Telephone: (02) 6207 1740  
http://www.acat.act.gov.au/ 

Should you have any queries in relation to your request please contact me by telephone 
on 6207 7754 or email CMTEDDFOI@act.gov.au.  

Yours sincerely, 
 

 
Emma Hotham  
Information Officer 
Information Access Team 
Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate 
30 June 2023 





13 58-63 20230120  - Margaret McKinnon to Josh Rynehart - 
Confirm clearance 

20 January 
2023 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes 

14 64-68 20230120 - Josh Rynehart to Margaret McKinnon – 
Cleared 

20 January 
2023 

Partial Sch 1 1.2; 
Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) 

Yes 

15 69-74 20230120 - Margaret McKinnon to ACMin – Cleared 20 January 
2023 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes 

16 75-80 20230120  - Josh Rynehart to Margaret McKinnon – 
Actioned 

20 January 
2023 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes 

17 81-86 20230120 - ACMin to Records - Amend access 20 January 
2023 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes 

18 87-93 20230120 - Records to ACMin – Actioned 20 January 
2023 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes 

19 94 20230120 - ACMin to ACDLO - Cleared response 20 January 
2023 

Full  Yes 

20 95-98 20230210 - FW: Correspondence from Shane Rattenbury 
MLA 

10 February 
2023 

Full  Yes 

21 99-100 20230214 - RE: Correspondence from Shane Rattenbury 
MLA 

14 February 
2023 

Full  Yes 

22 101-102 20230214 - RE: Correspondence from Shane Rattenbury 
MLA 

14 February 
2023 

Full  Yes 

23 103-105 20230215 - RE: Correspondence from Shane Rattenbury 
MLA 

15 February 
2023 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes 

24 106-111 FW_ Correspondence from Shane Rattenbury MLA 15 February 
2023 

Full  Yes 

25 112-113 Derise Cubin - Conflict of Interest Disclosure 24 November 
2021 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii); 
Out of scope 

Yes 

26 114-115 Derise Cubin  - Disclosure of perceived conflict of 
interest 

24 November 
2021 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii); 
Out of scope 

Yes 

27 116-117 FW_ Correspondence from Shane Rattenbury 
MLA(vA52547273) 

8 November 
2022 

Full  Yes 

28 118-119 FW_ Current assurance controls in place - conflict of 
interest(vA52547286) 

24 November 
2022 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes 

29 120-121 FW_ TO NOTE_ Standard Operating Procedure - acting 
Cmr for Fair Trading appointment(vA52547277) 

24 November 
2022 

Full  Yes 

30 122-125 FW_ TO NOTE_ Standard Operating Procedure - acting 
Cmr for Fair Trading appointment(vA52547281) 

10 February 
2023 

Full  Yes 

31 126-130 Fwd_ assurance controls in place(vA52547276) 28 March 2023 Full  Yes 



32 131-135 RE_ timeline and declaration documents(vA52547283) 28 March 2023 Full  Yes 

33 136-137 20221110 - RE: FYI - QTONs - Gaming & Consumer 
Affairs on 8 Nov 

11 November 
2022 

Full Out of scope Yes 

34 138-144 20221111 - GBC to COO - word docs provided alias 11 November 
2022 

Full Out of scope Yes 

35 145-151 20221114 - Record of clearance from Margaret 
McKinnon - QTON XX - CAIN - Conflict of interest - 
Commissioner for Fair Trading 

14 November 
2022 

Partial Sch 1 1.2;  
Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii); 

Out of scope 

Yes 

36 152-154 20221115 - GBC to ACDLO - RATTENBURY - QTONS from 
Consumer Affairs hearing alias 

15 November 
2022 

Partial Sch 1 1.2;  
Out of scope 

Yes 

37 155-157 20221116- ACDLO to LA JCS Secretary - 46 QTON 
ANSWER - CMTEDD-AC - Conflict of Interest - 
Commissioner for Fair Trading alias 

16 November 
2022 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii); 
Out scope 

Yes 

38 158 20221118 - GBC to FTC and A/g COO - RE: URGENT Pink 
Frosting QTB Updates - November/December 22 alias 

18 November 
2022 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes 

39 159 20221122 - GBC to ACDLO - Pink Frosting QTB alias 22 November 
2022 

Full  Yes 

40 160 20221122 - GBC to ACDLO - RE: Pink Frosting QTB alias 22 November 
2022 

Full  Yes 

41 N/A 20221122 - FTC EBM to A/g COO - FW: for urgent 
review - QTB alias 

N/A Exempt Sch 1 1.2 Yes 

42 N/A 20221122 - GBC to FTC EBM and A/g COO - RE: FOR 
URGENT CLEARANCE COO - Pink Frosting alias 

N/A Exempt Sch 1 1.2 Yes 

43 161-162 20221122 - A/g COO to DDG - cleared FW: URGENT Pink 
Frosting QTB Updates - November/December 22 alias 

22 November 
2022 

Partial Sch 1 1.2; 
Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) 

Yes 

44 163-164 
 

20221122 - DDG to A/g COO - cleared for GSO RE: 
URGENT Pink Frosting QTB Updates - 
November/December 22 alias 

22 November 
2022 

Partial Sch 1 1.2; 
Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) 

Yes 

45 N/A 20221122 - A/g COO to GBC - cleared COO - Pink 
Frosting (A39730133) alias 

N/A Exempt Sch 1 1.2 No 

46 N/A 20221122 - DDG to FTC EBM - cleared with update FOR 
URGENT CLEARANCE COO - Pink Frosting alias 

N/A Exempt Sch 1 1.2 No 

47 165-166 Pink Frosting-24 November 2022 alias 24 November 
2022 

Full  Yes 

48 167 20230117 - ACDLO to GBC QTB Update - Rattenbury - 7-
9 February 2023 alias 

17 January 
2022 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii); 
Out of scope 

Yes 



49 168-169 20230118- ACDLO to GBC - BBR QTB index for February 
sitting alias 

18 January 
2022 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii); 
Out of scope 

Yes 

50 170-171 
 

20230119 - GBC to Relevant Contacts - For Action (Due 
12pm 26 January): QTBs for 7-9 February Assembly 
Sittings alias 

19 January 
2022 

 

Full  Yes 

51 172 20230124 - Josh Rynehart to GBC - Cleared - Pink 
Frosting QTB alias 

24 January 
2022 

Full  Yes 

52 173 20230124 - Alex McPherson to EBM - For clearance: 
WQTB - Pink Frosting - 7-9 February 2023 alias 

23 January 
2022 

Full  Yes 

53 174 20230125 - ACDLO to GBC - Updated index and new 
QTB alias 

25 January 
2022 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii); 
Out of scope 

Yes 

54 175 20230130- COO to GBC - Cleared - comments in review 
pane - 1 QTB for DDG and 2 for resubmission - 16 QTBs 
alias 

30 January 
2022 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes 

55 176 20230131 - GBC to ACDLO - 3 cleared QTBs - Minister 
Rattenbury alias 

31 January 
2022 

Full Out of scope Yes 

56 177 20230131 - GBC to ACDLO - 2 cleared QTBs - Minister 
Cheyne alias 

31 January 
2023 

Full Out of scope Yes 

57 178-179 20230131 - GBC to COO - comments not available - 16 
QTBs alias 

31 January 
2023 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii); 
Out scope 

Yes 

58 180-181 20230131 - GBC to COO - comments not visible - for 
review - 16 QTBs alias 

31 January 
2023 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii); 
Out of  scope 

Yes 

59 182 20230131 - COO to GBC - comments and clearance - 12 
QTBs alias 

31 January 
2023 

Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii); 
Out of scope 

Yes 

60 183-184 20230131 - DDG to GBC - Three Cleared - One Further 
Action alias 

31 January 
2023 

Full Out of scope Yes 

61 185-187 20230203 - ACDLO to GBC - MInister Cheyne - Cleared 
QTBS alias 

3 February 
2023 

Full Out of scope Yes 

62 188 20230203 - ACDLO to GBC - QTBs - Min Rattenbury - 
Consumer Affairs - Cleared alias 

3 February 
2023 

Full Out of scope Yes 

63 189-190 Pink Frosting - 7-9 February2023 alias 7-9 February 
2023 

Full  Yes 

64 191-192 20230306 - GBC to AC Relevant Contacts - For Action 
(Due COB 10 March): QTBs for 21-23 March Assembly 
Sittings alias 

6 March 2023 Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes 

65 193-196 20230310 - ACDLO - MO Cleared Index alias 10 March 2023 Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii); 
Out of scope 

Yes 



66 197-198 20230310 - Josh Rynehart Clearance - Pink Frosting 10 March 2023 
 

Partial Out of scope Yes 

67 199 20230314 - David Pryce, DDG Clearance -, Pink Frosting 
alias 

14 March 2023 Full Out of scope Yes 

68 200 20230315 - DDG to ACDLO - Note: Pink Frosting further 
updates to follow alias 

15 March 2023 Full  Yes 

69 201-202 20230315 - GBC to Josh Rynehart - Pink frosting brief 
for updating as per DDG advice to ACDLO alias 

15 March 2023 Full  Yes 

70 203 20230316 - Josh Rynehart to GBC - Clearance - Pink 
Frosting - 21-23 March 2023 alias 

16 March 2023 Full  Yes 

71 204 
 

20230316 - GBC to Josh Rynehart - Pink Frosting - 21-23 
March 2023 (A41215520) alias 

16 March 2023 Full  Yes 

72 205-207 20230317 - GBC to ACDLO - Cleared updates to QTBs - 
Pink Frosting  

17 March 2023 Full Out of scope Yes 

73 208 20230317 - GBC to DDG - FOR DDG CLEARANCE - Pink 
Frosting - 21-23 March 2023 alias 

N/A Partial Sch 1 1.2 Yes 

74 209-210 20230317 - Sent to DDG - REVISED FOR DDG 
CLEARANCE - Pink Frosting - 21-23 March 2023 alias 

17 March 2023 Full  Yes 

75 N/A 20230317 - Josh Rynehart to GBC - Request to update: 
Pink Frosting alias 

17 March 2023 Exempt Sch 1 1.2 Yes 

76 N/A 20230317 - Sent to DDG For Clearance: Pink Frosting - 
21-23 March 2023 (A41215520) alias 

17 March 2023 Exempt Sch 1 1.2 Yes 

77 N/A 20230317 - DDG Clearance: Pink Frosting - 21-23 March 
2023 (A41215520) alias 

23 March 2023 Exempt Sch 1 1.2 Yes 

78 211-212 Pink Frosting - 21-23 March 2023 alias 23 March 2023 Full  Yes 

79 213-214 Pink Frosting - 28-30 March 2023 alias 30 March 2023 Full  Yes 

80 215-217 20230428 - Josh Rynehart - Record of Clearance - Pink 
Frosting (nil updates) 

28 April 2023 Full Out of scope Yes 

81 218 20230501 - GBC to Marg McKinnon - FOR COO 
CLEARANCE (Due COB Tuesday 2/5) - QTBs for May 
sitting alias 

1 May 2023 Full Out of scope Yes 

82 219 20230501 - Marg McKinnon - Pink Frosting for DDG 
clearance 

1 May 2023 Partial Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii); 
Out scope 

Yes 

83 220 20230502 - DDG unable to edit Pink Frosting QTB alias 2 May 2023 Full Out of scope Yes 









Shadow Attorney-General
Shadow Minister for Multicultural Affairs
Shadow Minister for Planning and Land Management
Assistant Shadow Treasurer
Assistant Speaker
 
Ph: 02 6205 1927
Website  Facebook  Instagram  Twitter
ACT Legislative Assembly | GPO Box 1020 Canberra City ACT 2601
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7 December 2022 
 
Shane Rattenbury MLA 
Leader of the ACT Greens 
Attorney-General 
Minister for Consumer Affairs 
Minister for Water, Energy and Emissions Reduction 
Minister for Gaming 
ACT Legislative Assembly 
London Circuit, Canberra ACT 2601 
 
Dear Attorney General 
 
Re: Conflict of interest disclosure  
 
I write regarding the declaration I questioned you on during the JACS Inquiry in to Annual 
and Financial Reports 2021-22, on the 8 November 2022.  
 
In this session, I questioned you and Derise Cubin, the ACT Commissioner for Fair 
Trading, in regards to the declaration made regarding a potential conflict of interest 
between Ms Cubin as the current ACT Commissioner for Fair Trading, and the previous 
Commissioner for Fair Trading David Snowden. In this line of questioning you told me that 
you don’t have details on hand regarding this disclosure, and Ms Cubin said she was ‘not 
at liberty’ to say anything in regards to the disclosure or the conflict of interest.  
 
In your question taken on notice, signed by you on 15 November 2022, you highlighted 
that ‘the nature of the declaration was a conflict of interest consistent with the CMTEDD 
Conflict of Interest Policy and Guidelines dated 28 July 2021’. 
 
You did not define what the declaration was, or according to what definition it was 
considered a conflict. Please outline further detail, including the nature of the disclosure 
and the conflict.  
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
Peter Cain MLA 
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From: RATTENBURY <RATTENBURY@act.gov.au>
Date: 8 December 2022 at 11:06:23 am AEDT
To: "Georgeson, Matthew" <Matthew.Georgeson@act.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Letter from Peter Cain MLA regarding a conflict of interest

Thoughts? 
 

From: CAIN <CAIN@parliament.act.gov.au> 
Sent: Wednesday, 7 December 2022 5:03 PM
To: RATTENBURY <RATTENBURY@act.gov.au>
Subject: Letter from Peter Cain MLA regarding a conflict of interest
 
Good afternoon Attorney General,
 
Please see attached a letter from Peter Cain MLA regarding a conflict of interest.
 
Unity
 
Unity Paterson (she/her)
Senior Adviser | Office of Peter Cain MLA
 
Liberal Member for Ginninderra
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

 

11









Subject: Fwd: Letter from Peter Cain MLA regarding a conflict of interest
 
Let’s pass this onto our access Canberra friends to draft a reply for the minister please.
Matt 

Begin forwarded message:
 

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
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To: ACDLO <ACDLO@act.gov.au>
Cc: RATTENBURY <RATTENBURY@act.gov.au>
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
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GPO Box 158, Canberra ACT 2601 | www.accesscanberra.act.gov.au
 
Minister for Business and Better Regulation
Minister for Consumer Affairs
Minister for Planning and Land Management

 
 
 

From: Georgeson, Matthew <Matthew.Georgeson@act.gov.au> 
Sent: Thursday, 8 December 2022 11:19 AM
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

 

93





From: Persic, Drazen on behalf of ACDLO
To: Rynehart, Josh; Pryce, David
Cc: Matthews, Catherine
Subject: FW: Correspondence from Shane Rattenbury MLA
Date: Friday, 10 February 2023 4:40:31 PM
Attachments: 22 167715 - Ministerial - Rattenbury - Conflict of Interest Declaration.pdf

HoS response to Minister Rattenbury - Request for advice - Access Canberra matter.pdf

OFFICIAL: Sensitive - Personal Privacy
 
Hi Josh and David
 
Please find attached signed correspondence by Minister Rattenbury.
 
Cath can you please file.
 
Regards
Draz
 

From: RATTENBURY <RATTENBURY@act.gov.au> 
Sent: Friday, 10 February 2023 4:04 PM
To: CAIN <CAIN@parliament.act.gov.au>
Subject: Correspondence from Shane Rattenbury MLA
 
Good afternoon,
 
Please find attached correspondence from Shane Rattenbury, MLA.
 
Kind regards,
 
Office of Shane Rattenbury MLA
ACT Greens Member for Kurrajong
Attorney-General; Minister for Consumer Affairs; Minister for Gaming;
Minister for Water, Energy and Emissions Reduction
t: (02) 620 50005 | e: Rattenbury@act.gov.au
Follow Shane on  Facebook and Twitter

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of the Australian Capital Territory and across Australia, and pay
respects to their Elders, past, present and future.
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As part of this process an alternative decision maker was established whereby the Head of Access 
Canberra acts as the Acting Commissioner for Fair Trading for dealing with the parties listed below. 
The scope of that protocol includes dealings with: 

a. Ms Louise Curtis; 
b. ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal: Proceeding reference XD1027 of 2021; 
c. Pink Frosting/ Pink Frosting (ACT) Pty Ltd - ABN 92 164 538 783 - ACN 164 538 783; 
d. 86 Candles Pty Limited – ACN 607 264 586; 
e. Trustee for 86 Candles Unit Trust; and 
f. Lollypotz. 

 
As I have previously indicated to you, I am committed to transparency and will assist where possible. 
However, I am conscious of personal privacy of all parties, including the complainant. 
 
I would also like to inform you that on this matter I sought advice not just from Access Canberra, but 
also from the Head of Service, Ms Kathy Leigh, in order to receive an external perspective. Ms Leigh 
has looked into the matter and confirmed that Access Canberra has acted appropriately. I have 
attached the Head of Service’s letter about this matter.  
 
I trust this resolves your concerns. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
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
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From: Persic, Drazen <Drazen.Persic@act.gov.au> On Behalf Of ACDLO
Sent: Friday, 10 February 2023 4:40 PM
To: Rynehart, Josh <Josh.Rynehart@act.gov.au>; Pryce, David <David.Pryce@act.gov.au>
Cc: Matthews, Catherine <Catherine.Matthews@act.gov.au>
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
 

102







respects to their Elders, past, present and future.
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From: RATTENBURY
To: ACDLO
Cc: Georgeson, Matthew
Subject: FW: Correspondence from Shane Rattenbury MLA
Date: Wednesday, 15 February 2023 10:53:29 AM
Attachments: Response - Rattenbury to Ms Curtis.pdf

HoS response to Minister Rattenbury - Request for advice - Access Canberra matter.pdf
FW Correspondence from Shane Rattenbury MLA.msg

Hi Team,
Please see the response sent to Ms Curtis, and attached her reply to this email.
Thanks,
Amy

From: RATTENBURY 
Sent: Friday, 10 February 2023 4:02 PM
To: louiselollypotz@gmail.com
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
Follow Shane on Facebook and Twitter

We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of the Australian Capital Territory and across Australia, and pay
respects to their Elders, past, present and future.
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nor disclose its contents to any other person.
-----------------------------------------------------------------------
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conflict of interest disclosure under the CMTEDD conflict of interest policy on 24 November 2021 
and a process was established to prevent any conflicts arising in the matter.  

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

 
 
 
On this basis, and following my own consideration, I am satisfied the matter has been handled 
appropriately. 
    
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
Shane Rattenbury MLA 
Minister for Consumer Affairs 
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From: AC - Office of the DDG
To: Rynehart, Josh
Subject: FW: Current assurance controls in place - conflict of interest
Date: Thursday, 24 November 2022 1:42:10 PM
Attachments: image001.png

OFFICIAL: Sensitive

From: McKinnon, Margaret
Sent: Tuesday, 8 November 2022 7:12 PM
To: Leigh, Kathy <Kathy.Leigh@act.gov.au>
Cc: AC - Office of the DDG <ACOfficeoftheDDG@act.gov.au>; Wright, Robert <Robert.Wright@act.gov.au>
Subject: Current assurance controls in place - conflict of interest

OFFICIAL: Sensitive

Kathy

I briefly discussed this matter at our catch up last week.  For your information I am providing additional
information which outlines Access Canberra s handing of possible conflicts relating to potential claims by 86
Candles Pty Limited arising from the investigation of the Pink Frosting business under the Fair Trading
(Australian Consumer Law) Act 1992 (the FT Act).

On 18 January 2021, Derise Cubin was appointed as the ACT Commissioner for Fair Trading (the
Commissioner) pursuant to Fair Trading (Australian Consumer Law) Commissioner Appointment 2021 (No 1),
Notifiable Instrument NI2021-31.

On 4 February 2021, the Fair Trading (Australian Consumer Law) Acting Commissioner Appointment 2021
(No 1) Notifiable Instrument NI2021-60 was signed and  appointed the occupant of the public servant position
number E827 to act as Commissioner for Fair Trading in the event that Derise Cubin is absent, unavailable or is
otherwise for any reason unable to exercise the functions of the Commissioner for Fair Trading.

Following correspondence from Eastwood Legal (as the legal representative of 86 Candles Pty Limited) on 21
January and 27 May 2021 which ACT Government Solicitor s responded to, a without prejudice discussion
occurred on 6 July 2021 to clarify particulars of any potential claim against the Territory.

Ms Cubin attended the without prejudice discussions as Commissioner on 6 July 2021. It was made clear to
Eastwood Legal prior to the meeting that the Territory is not able to make settlement offers at this stage but
does consider that a discussion between the parties should enable the progression of the matter.
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From: Pryce, David
To: Rynehart, Josh
Subject: RE: timeline and declaration documents
Date: Thursday, 24 November 2022 2:19:39 PM
Attachments: image001.png

OFFICIAL: Sensitive

Hi Josh,

The timeline should show when Derise was appointed as the  Commissioner  see Fair Trading (Australian
Consumer Law) Commissioner Appointment 2021 (No 1), dated 18 January 2021.

It should also make clearer that my position (Head of Access Canberra) was appointed as Acting Commissioner
on 4 February 2021  see Fair Trading (Australian Consumer Law) Acting Commissioner Appointment 2021
(No 1).

Thanks,

David

David Pryce | Deputy Director-General

Head of Access Canberra
Phone: 02 6205 9898 | Email: david.pryce@act.gov.au

Access Canberra | Chief Minister Treasury and Economic Development Directorate | ACT Government

GPO Box 158, Canberra City, ACT 2601 | www.act.gov.au/accessCBR

This email and any of its attachments may be confidential. If you are not the intended recipient please notify the
sender and delete immediately.  You should not copy or use it for any purpose, nor disclose its contents to any
other person.

From: Rynehart, Josh <Josh.Rynehart@act.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 24 November 2022 2:10 PM
To: Pryce, David <David.Pryce@act.gov.au>
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Subject: FW: timeline and declaration documents

OFFICIAL: Sensitive

Just FYI

From: Rynehart, Josh
Sent: Thursday, 24 November 2022 1:54 PM
To: Power, Leanne <Leanne.Power@act.gov.au>
Subject: timeline and declaration documents

OFFICIAL: Sensitive

Hi Leanne,

Here are the declaration, standard operating procedure and timeline of the matter as they relate.

Happy to discuss

Josh Rynehart (He/Him)

A/g Chief Operating Officer

Access Canberra

Ph: 6205 3740

Email: josh rynehart@act.gov.au
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
To: Cubin, Derise
Subject: FW: TO NOTE: Standard Operating Procedure - acting Cmr for Fair Trading appointment
Date: Tuesday, 28 March 2023 1:08:00 PM
Attachments: Commissioner for Fair Trading - Acting SOP March 2023 (final).docx

image001.png

OFFICIAL: Sensitive - Legal Privilege

Good afternoon

Just noting David s email below, I am advising you of the updated SOP relating to the use of the Acting
Commissioner appointment.

Josh Rynehart (He/Him)

Executive Branch Manager, Fair Trading and Compliance

Access Canberra

Ph: 6205 3740

Email: josh rynehart@act.gov.au

From: Pryce, David <David.Pryce@act.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 23 March 2023 2:39 PM
To: Rynehart, Josh <Josh.Rynehart@act.gov.au>
Subject: TO NOTE: Standard Operating Procedure - acting Cmr for Fair Trading appointment and matters
where Derise has a conflict

OFFICIAL: Sensitive - Legal Privilege

Hi Josh,
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If you could save this for our records (on Objective) and ensure relevant persons are notified of the SOP,
including Derise Cubin and Margaret McKinnon (noting she will be Acting DDG Access Canberra while I m
on leave).

Thanks,

David

David Pryce | Deputy Director-General

Head of Access Canberra and Registrar-General
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
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Standard operating procedure relating to Fair Trading (Australian Consumer Law) Acting 
Commissioner Appointment 2021 (No 1), Notifiable Instrument NI2021-60 (“Policy") 

Date: 30 November 2021 

Updated 23 March 2023 

Part 1:  Purpose 

1. Ms Derise Cubin has submitted a signed “Conflict of Interest Disclosure” form 
dated 24 November 2021. 
 

2. Section 9(1)(a) and (b) of the Public Sector Management Act 1994 requires that a 
public servant take all reasonable steps to avoid a conflict of interest and declare 
or manage a conflict of interest that cannot reasonably be avoided. 

 

Part 2:  Commissioner for Fair Trading 

1. Ms Derise Cubin is appointed as the Commissioner for Fair Trading: see Fair 
Trading (Australian Consumer Law) Commissioner Appointment 2021 (No 1), 
Notifiable Instrument NI2021-31. 
 

2. Mr David Pryce is appointed as the Acting Commissioner for Fair Trading by the 
Fair Trading (Australian Consumer Law) Acting Commissioner Appointment 2023 
(No 1), Notifiable Instrument NI2023-59. That legislative instrument provides that 
David Pryce is appointed to act as Commissioner for Fair Trading in the event that 
Derise Cubin is absent, unavailable or unable to exercise the functions of the 
Commissioner for Fair Trading. 
 

Part 3:  Scope of policy 

1. Having regard to the matters outlined in the “Conflict of Interest Disclosure” form 
dated 24 November 2021, it is decided that, in respect of the matters referred to in 
Part 3 of this Policy, Ms Cubin is unable to exercise the functions of the 
Commissioner for Fair Trading, and Mr David Pryce will act as Acting 
Commissioner for Fair Trading.  
 

2. This Policy applies to circumstances whereby Ms Derise Cubin has declared a 
conflict of interest and, in exercising her functions as an employed public servant 
and the Commissioner for Fair Trading, would ordinarily be involved with, or 
perform duties in connection with, the following individuals, entities, and/or 
Tribunal proceedings: 
 
a. Ms Louise Curtis of 24 Fergusson Crescent Deakin ACT 2600;  and 
b. ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal: Proceeding reference XD1027 of 

2021; and  
c. Pink Frosting/ Pink Frosting (ACT) Pty Ltd - ABN 92 164 538 783 - ACN 

164 538 783; and, 
d. 86 Candles Pty Limited – ACN 607 264 586; and,  
e. Trustee for 86 Candles Unit Trust; and, 
f. Lollypotz. 
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Part 4:  Process for Access Canberra 

1. For the purpose of the matters referenced above at Part 3 of this policy, Mr David 
Pryce will exercise the functions of the Acting Commissioner for Fair Trading. 
 

2. Subject to paragraph 6 below, Access Canberra employees should ensure that, in 
relation to any matter to which this Policy applies, Ms Derise Cubin: 
 

a. is excluded from any decisions, briefings and/or advice  
b. is not provided with any correspondence; and 
c. is not included in, or consulted on, any legal advice, and/or briefings to 

Ministers or the Head of Service. 
 

3. Any written correspondence, updates, and/or advice  should be sent to or from Mr 
David Pryce by his direct email address and Mr Josh Rynehart, Ms Alex 
McPherson and Mr Damien Kelly by their respective email addresses only. 
 

4. Decisions on matters listed in Part 3 of this Policy will continue to be made within 
the Fair Trading and Compliance Branch, in accordance with its processes. In the 
circumstances where instruction from the Commissioner is required, Mr Josh 
Rynehart will seek instruction from Mr David Pryce. 
 

5. Access Canberra will take reasonable steps as documented to ensure that Ms Derise 
Cubin is not able to access electronic or hard-copy records relating to any matter 
referenced above at Part 3 of this Policy. Ms Cubin’s access to any Objective files 
relating to the matters outlined at Part 3 of this Policy will be removed. 

 
6. The process above does not limit the ability of Access Canberra to discuss with Ms 

Cubin, or provide documents to Ms Cubin, about the individuals and entities listed 
in Part 3 of the Policy where required by law, in accordance with the requirements 
of natural justice, or where considered necessary for the administration of Access 
Canberra. 

 
7. It is the responsibility of Access Canberra to ensure that, to the extent necessary 

and only to the extent necessary, its staff are aware of and comply with this Policy.  

 

Part 5:  Instructions for ACTGS   

1. For the purpose of the matters referenced above at Part 3 of this policy, Mr David 
Pryce will exercise the functions of the Acting Commissioner for Fair Trading. 
 

2. Where ACTGS is engaged in relation to the matters/entities referenced above at 
Part 3 of this Policy, Access Canberra will instruct ACTGS as follows: 
 

a. any written correspondence, updates, and/or advice is provided directly to 
Mr David Pryce by his direct email address and Mr Josh Rynehart, Ms 
Alex McPherson and Mr Damien Kelly by their respective email addresses 
only; 
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b. that Ms Derise Cubin is not copied into any such correspondence or advice 
as referred to as paragraph (a); 

c. that Ms Derise Cubin is not included in, or present for any discussion 
about, or in connection to the matters referenced above at Part 3 of this 
Policy.  

 
 

 

 

130



From: Rynehart, Josh
To: McKinnon, Margaret
Cc: AC - Office of the DDG
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
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Outside Scope



Outside Scope





 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Approved for circulation to the Standing Committee on Justice and Community Safety 
 
 
Signature:                                                                                                                Date: 
 
By the Minister for Consumer Affairs, Mr Shane Rattenbury 
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Minister Shane Rattenbury MLA:  The answer to the Member’s question is as follows:–  
 
The nature of the declaration was a conflict of interest disclosure consistent with the CMTEDD Conflict 
of Interest Policy and Guidelines dated 28 July 2021. 
 
 

 

Approved for circulation to the Standing Committee on Justice and Community Safety 
 
 
Signature:                                                                                                                Date: 
 
By the Minister for Consumer Affairs, Mr Shane Rattenbury 

157

















Portfolio/s: Consumer Affairs 

ISSUE: Pink Frosting 

If asked about legal proceedings by 86 Candles Pty Limited (ACN 607 264 
586) in late 2020 

If asked about conflict of interest 

If asked about administrative decisions made by the Commissioner for Fair 
Trading  

Talking points: 

 The business name “Pink Frosting” was deregistered in August 2020. 

 As a result of this, Access Canberra closed its investigation of consumer 
complaints made about Pink Frosting under Australian Consumer Law. 

If asked about legal proceedings by 86 Candles Pty Limited (ACN 607 264 586) 
in late 2020 

 Firsly, I need to be cautious about what I say for a range of legal and 
privacy reasons. 

 I can confirm that the ACT Government is presently engaging with 
86 Candles Pty Limited and its legal representative in relation to 
potential legal proceedings. In relation to those potential proceedings, I 
can confirm that the ACT Insurance Authority also provides instructions 
to the ACT Government Solicitors.   

 I am advised that there was a separate matter filed in the ACAT by 
86 Candles Pty Limited in November 2021, however, ACAT dismissed 
those proceedings on 3 December 2021.  

 It would be inappropriate to make further public comment. 
If asked about conflict of interest 

 I am advised that a potential conflict of interest was declared by the 
Commissioner for Fair Trading in November 2021, and an appropriate 
management strategy was implemented by Access Canberra. 

 Conflicts of interests are managed in accordance with the CMTEDD 
Conflict of Interest policy. 
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 It would be inappropriate to make further public comment at this time. 
If asked about administrative decisions made by the Commissioner for Fair 
Trading  

 Decisions made by the Commissioner, or their delegates, are made 
under the provisions of the relevant law.  

 If an applicant is not satisfied with an administrative decisions, they can 
seek review in the ACAT, or through other mechanisms such as the 
Ombudsman.  

Key Information 

 Pink Frosting was an ACT-based retailer selling party supplies through an online store 
and a shopfront in Canberra.  

 The investigation commenced following consumer complaints being lodged with 
Australian Consumer Law regulators throughout Australia. 

 Complaints largely involved allegations of failing to supply goods within a reasonable 
time. 
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From: Adams, Courtney on behalf of Access Canberra Government Business & Coordination
To: AC, Strategic Business Coordination; Gallon, Michael; Bramwell, Narelle; Brigden, Robert; Bell, Kevin;

Arugay, Fred; Gaze, Reuben; Power, David; Dix, Rodney; Penfold, Tyler; Fleck, Katrina; Wilson, Rebecca;
Spasenoski, Tony; Short, Rachael; McHenry, Leah; Seddon, Christopher; Morados, Veronica; Vaile, Jodie;
McPherson, Alex; Kelly, Damien; Andric, Radmila; Robbins, Jarrah; Wilden, Cai; Duggan, Brenda; Bandala,
Kathy; Wild-River, Su; Vaile, Jodie; Foudoulis, Penelope; Mendones, Ruth; Access Canberra Intel and Data
Analysis; Patron, Francois; AC - Office of Service Delivery and Engagement; AC - Office of CUEP; Wilmot,
Kerrie

Cc: Pryce, David; Rynehart, Josh; McKinnon, Margaret; Lhuede, Nick; Mangeruca, Giuseppe; Cubin, Derise;
Springett, Emily; Chan, Yu-Lan; Kelly, Joshua; Nip, Kester; AC - Office of the DDG; Access Canberra
Government Business & Coordination

Subject: For Action (Due 12pm 26 January): QTBs for 7-9 February Assembly Sittings [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Date: Thursday, 19 January 2023 9:41:11 AM
Attachments: image001.png

ObjRef.obr
.Proposed Index - February 2023.obr

OFFICIAL
Good morning all
Please see attached objective link containing Question Time Briefs (QTBs) for the upcoming 7-9
February 2023 Assembly Sittings. Please note I have included the QTB Index link as Minister
Cheyne’s office has made notes to be addressed in the QTBs.

Can you please update QTBs relevant to your area (in track changes) and return to GBC (cleared
by your EBM) by 12pm Thursday 26 January at the very latest.

Please remember to contact the Data Team for statistics as soon as possible.

If there are any unexpected turn of events/circumstances prior to the week of the Assembly
Sitting, please remember to let GBC know ASAP so that we can provide updated versions of the
QTBs or new QTBs to the MO ASAP.

IMPORTANT: Information in QTBs should not include any information regarding active
investigations and any information included should be suitable for release under FOI.

If you believe any QTBs are no longer required please let the GBC team know ASAP to allow us
time to contact the relevant Minister for discussion.

A reminder that updates to the QTBs are not accepted after the Friday before a sitting (e.g.
Friday 16 September 2022). If an urgent or critical matter arises during the week of a sitting,
please inform GBC immediately, and then provide EBM cleared dot points in an email. This will
then be provided to the MO as part of the sitting week pack.

If there are any issues please let us know.

Thank you
Courtney Adams | Government Business and Coordination

Phone: 02 6207 7916 | Email: courtney.adams@act.gov.au
Access Canberra | ACT Government | Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate
Cosmopolitan Building, 21 Bowes Street, Woden | GPO Box 158 Canberra ACT 2601| www.act.gov.au/accessCBR
We acknowledge the Traditional Custodians of the ACT, the Ngunnawal people. We acknowledge and respect their
continuing culture and the contribution they make to the life of this city and this region.
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From: Rynehart, Josh
To: Access Canberra Government Business & Coordination
Cc: McPherson, Alex
Subject: FW: For clearance: WQTB - Pink Frosting - 7-9 February 2023 (A40403855)
Date: Tuesday, 24 January 2023 4:55:30 PM
Attachments: Pink Frosting - 7-9 February 2023.obr

OFFICIAL

Cleared

ta

-----Original Message-----
From: McPherson, Alex <Alex.McPherson@act.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, 23 January 2023 2:26 PM
To: Rynehart, Josh <Josh.Rynehart@act.gov.au>
Cc: Access Canberra Government Business & Coordination <AccessCanberraGBC@act.gov.au>; Kelly, Joshua
<Joshua.Kelly@act.gov.au>
Subject: For clearance: WQTB - Pink Frosting - 7-9 February 2023 (A40403855)

OFFICIAL

Hi Josh

For clearance please - QTB On Pink Frosting. No updates required.

Cheers
Alex 

Alex McPherson has sent you a link to "Pink Frosting - 7-9 February 2023" (A40403855) from Objective.

Open in Navigator      
Double click on the attachment

Open in ECM for Browser
https://objective.act.gov.au/#/documents/A40403855/details
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From: McPherson, Alex
To: Rynehart, Josh
Cc: Access Canberra Government Business & Coordination; Kelly, Joshua
Subject: For clearance: WQTB - Pink Frosting - 7-9 February 2023 (A40403855)
Date: Monday, 23 January 2023 2:25:33 PM
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
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From: Gath, Isabelle <Isabelle.Gath@act.gov.au> On Behalf Of Access Canberra Government Business &
Coordination
Sent: Monday, 30 January 2023 3:18 PM
To: McKinnon, Margaret <Margaret.McKinnon@act.gov.au>
Cc: AC - Office of the DDG <ACOfficeoftheDDG@act.gov.au>; Access Canberra Government Business &
Coordination <AccessCanberraGBC@act.gov.au>
Subject: For COO Clearance - Due 9AM 31/01/2023 - 16 QTBs

Good afternoon Marg

For your clearance, 16 QTB matters.

Please note, there are still 6 QTB matters awaiting clearance from the areas. This includes one brand new QTB.

Kind Regards

Isabelle Gath | Government Business and Coordination
Phone: 02 6205 4045 | Email: isabelle.gath@act.gov.au Access Canberra | ACT Government GPO Box 158,
Canberra City  ACT  2601 | www.act.gov.au/accessCBR

Access Canberra | Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate | ACT Government

179















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

 Firsly, I am restricted in what I can say for a range of legal and privacy 
reasons. 

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

 I am unable to make further public comment at this time. 
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

 If an applicant is not satisfied with an administrative decision, they can 
seek review in the ACAT, or through other review mechanisms such as 
the Ombudsman.  

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
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This email and any of its attachments may be confidential. If you are not the intended recipient please notify the sender and delete
immediately. You should not copy or use it for any purpose, nor disclose its contents to any other person.
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Portfolio/s: Chief Minister 

Consumer Affairs 
ISSUE: Pink Frosting 
Chief Minister Talking Points 

If asked about conflict of interest 

Minister for Consumer Affairs Talking Points 

General Talking points 

If asked about legal proceedings by 86 Candles Pty Limited (ACN 607 264 
586) 

If asked about administrative decisions made by the Commissioner for Fair 
Trading  

Talking points: 

Chief Minister 

If asked about conflict of interest 

 I am advised that a potential conflict of interest was declared by the 
Commissioner for Fair Trading in November 2021, and a management 
strategy was implemented by Access Canberra in response. 

 I understand that the Attorney-General sought advice from the Head of 
Service about this matter. 

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

 Following a request from my office, the Head of Service provided me 
with advice on 6 February 2023 about the actions of Access Canberra in 
managing this matter. In particular, the Head of Service advised that the 
actions of Access Canberra have been appropriate. 
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 An Acting Commissioner appointment remains in place to manage any 
perceived or actual conflicts of interest. 

If asked about legal proceedings by 86 Candles Pty Limited (ACN 607 264 586) 

 I am restricted in what I can say for a range of legal and privacy reasons. 

 What I can say is that: 
o there was a matter filed in the ACAT by 86 Candles Pty Limited in 

November 2021, however, ACAT dismissed those proceedings on 
3 December 2021; and 

o another matter is before the Courts, in which 86 Candles Pty Limited 
is seeking preliminary discovery from the Territory in relation to 
matters raised by Ms Curtis. It is not known whether and if so what 
proceedings may subsequently be commenced by Ms Curtis or 86 
Candles Pty Limited or the claims or relief that might be sought in any 
such proceedings, and therefore it would be inappropriate to make 
any further comment at this time. 

If asked about administrative decisions made by the Commissioner for Fair Trading  

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

 Fair Trading (Australian Consumer Law) Acting Commissioner Appointment 2023 (No 
1) | Notifiable instruments 
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
conflict of interest situations. 

If asked about legal proceedings by 86 Candles Pty Limited (ACN 607 264 586) 

 I am restricted in what I can say for a range of legal and privacy reasons. 

 What I can say is that: 
o there was a matter filed in the ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal 

(ACAT) by 86 Candles Pty Limited in November 2021, however, ACAT 
dismissed those proceedings on 3 December 2021; and 

o another matter was filed in the ACT Supreme, in which 86 Candles 
Pty Limited was granted preliminary discovery from the Territory in 
relation to matters raised by Ms Curtis. It is not known whether and if 
so what proceedings may subsequently be commenced by Ms Curtis 
or 86 Candles Pty Limited or the claims or relief that might be sought 
in any such proceedings, and therefore it would be inappropriate to 
make any further comment at this time. 

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

 Pink Frosting was an ACT-based retailer selling party supplies through an 
online store and a shopfront in Canberra.  

 The investigation commenced following consumer complaints being 
lodged with Australian Consumer Law regulators throughout Australia. 

 Complaints largely involved allegations of failing to supply goods within a 
reasonable time. 

 Fair Trading (Australian Consumer Law) Acting Commissioner 
Appointment 2023 (No 1) | Notifiable instruments 
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